Public Document Pack

Susan O’Connell
Democratic Services Officer
Direct : 020 8132 1399

Textphone: 020 8379 4419 (in Civic Centre)
e-mail: susan.o’connell@enfield.gov.uk

STAFF APPEALS, APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Thursday, 29th April, 2021 at 6.30 pm
Virtual Meeting/Remote - Please use the links on the agenda front sheet to join the
virtual meeting
Please click Here to view the meeting or copy and paste the link below into your web
browser:
https://bit.ly/2QjUTPs
Membership:
Councillors Nesil Caliskan (Chair), Ian Barnes and Edward Smith
AGENDA – PART 1
1.

WELCOME & APOLOGIES

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members of the Council are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary,
other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to items on the agenda.

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)
To agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 12 January 2021.

4.

GENDER & ETHNICITY PAY GAP REPORTS & ANNUAL STATEMENTS
(Pages 5 - 30)
To receive a report from Tinu Olowe, Director of Human Resources &

1

Organisational Design.
5.

REVIEW OF RESOURCES SENIOR MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Pages
31 - 36)
To receive a report from Fay Hammond, Executive Director Resources

6.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
The dates of future meetings will be agreed at the meeting of Annual Council
in May 2021.

2

Page 1
Public Document
Pack

Agenda Item 3

STAFF APPEALS, APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE - 12.1.2021

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE STAFF APPEALS,
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE HELD
ON TUESDAY, 12TH JANUARY, 2021
MEMBERS: Councillors
Edward Smith

Nesil Caliskan

(Chair),

Charith Gunawardena

and

Officers: Ian Davis (Chief Executive), Fay Hammond (Executive Director
Resources), Tinu Olowe (Director of Human Resources & Operational Design), Julie
Mimnagh (Head of Human Resources Operations), Jeremy Chambers (Director of
Law & Governance), Andy Ellis (Governance & Scrutiny Officer) and Susan
O’Connell (Governance & Scrutiny Officer)

Also Attending: 3 members of the public
1.

WELCOME & APOLOGIES
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were received.

3.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting 14 January 2020 were approved, however it was
noted that none of the members from this meeting were in attendance.

4.

REVIEW & ADOPTION OF STATUTORY PAY POLICY STATEMENT FOR
2021
RECEIVED a report from the Director of
Organisational Design.

Human Resources and

NOTED that:
1. The Localism Act 2011 requires all Councils to review and adopt a Pay
Policy Statement each financial year.
2. The report to the Committee proposed amendments detailed under
paragraph seven of the agenda report.
3. The main changes are in relation to the Pay Award agreed for 2020
which is detailed within the report as 2.75% increase and also the
introduction of the Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments
Regulations 2020 and is the next item on the agenda this outlines the
changes that came into force November 2020.
4. Following reports regarding pay increases during the year. Members
were advised that there are processes in place to deal with this. It was

Page 2
STAFF APPEALS, APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE - 12.1.2021
recommended by the Chief Executive that future payments agreed
under 3.7 of the Pay Policy for Directors or Executive Directors would
be notified to the next available Renumeration Committee.
5. It was agreed going forward that if this was to reoccur the Chief
Executive would notify this to this Committee.
6. The pay awards are negotiated at a national level through the joint
national council between employer side and staff side and they are
governed by the terms and conditions of employment. What is
recommended at a national level and implemented at a local level.
7. Officers confirmed that the leaders of the opposition groups were
briefed and consulted on the item before the meeting and their
feedback has been taken into account
AGREED: The Staff Appeals, Appointment & Remuneration Committee
agreed to put forward the proposed amendments to the statutory Pay Policy
Statement for recommendation and approval at Full Council on 24th February
2021.
5.

PUBLIC SECTOR EXIT PAYMENT REGULATIONS 2020
RECEIVED a report from the Director of
Organisational Design.

Human Resources and

NOTED that:
1. The Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations 2020 came
into force on 4 November 2020, this is a statutory bound policy which
must be implemented, and this limits the exit payment within the public
sector when a member of staff is either made redundant or leaves
through efficiencies. The maximum payment an employer can make
including, pension strain costs is £95k.
2. The regulations are clear about the cap imposed, within the agenda
paper are included the payments that are captured. Within Enfield this
will mainly relate to redundancy and the pension strain cost.
3. Under the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations
2013 where an active member who has attained the age of 55 or over
and is dismissed by reason of redundancy or business efficiency, they
have an entitlement to receive early payment of unreduced pension.
The employer is required to make a one-off payment to the pension
scheme administrators to prevent any actuarial reduction of a pension
on early retirement (referred to as the ‘pension strain cost’). It is this
cost which will lead to a number of exit payments breaching the £95k
cap. This may affect officers with long service who are over 55 as well
those highly paid officers.
4. The exclusions to this cap include; death in service payments; any
payments as a result of accident, injury or illness and any awards from
a court or an employment tribunal.
5. At the time the exit payments came into force the LGPS had not been
changed. This means that there is a conflict between someone’s
contractual entitlement under the LGPS Regulations and the
Restriction of Public Sector Exit Payments Regulations2020. As a

Page 3
STAFF APPEALS, APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE - 12.1.2021
public sector authority, the Council is obliged to work as if the Exit
Payment Regulations are fully enforced for all payments.
6. Under the existing LGPS regulations there is no criteria for the
employer to make a part payment into the pension scheme and the
pension scheme administrators cannot award partially reduced pension
benefits.
7. The LGPS regulations were out for consultation and this closed on the
18 December 2020. The outcome is expected to be published in Spring
2021, it is hoped that this will remove any conflict in the legislation.
8. At present an individual can only be offered statutory redundancy
payment, an option to receive their occupational redundancy
entitlement and a fully reduced or deferred pension. Once there is
clarity the council will go back to any individuals currently affected by
the cap and clarify their actual entitlements and make good any
shortfall in payment of their entitlement.
9. The agenda paper covers the current position, as soon as there is
clarity regarding the LGPS Regulations officers will come back to this
committee with an update.
10. There are at least 3 Judicial Reviews which have been given leave
from the high court with national bodies which are challenging the
entire lawfulness of the exit cap regulations.
11. Until there is certainty the overriding objective is to protect the public
purse. Advice has been taken on this from a senior QC. This is causing
significant challenges across the entire public sector.
12. It was confirmed that Trade Union representatives have been fully
briefed and there is a fortnightly meeting for which this is a standing
item.
13. Clarity was provided that this benefit is not available for staff dismissed
for poor performance.
14. It was reiterated that the cap does not only affect those on high pay
given that the pension amounts are also taken into consideration the
£95k is very easily reached particularly for those who have had many
years of service. It is important that Trade Union representatives are
kept up to date on developments.
15. Officers confirmed that the leaders of the opposition groups were
briefed and consulted on the item before the meeting and their
feedback has been taken into account.
6.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The date was noted.

Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

London Borough of Enfield
Committee Name: Staff Appeals, Appointments & Remuneration Committee
Meeting Date: 29 April 2021

Subject:
Cabinet Member:
Executive Director:

Gender & Ethnicity Pay Gap Reports & Annual Statements
Cllr Nesil Caliskan/Cllr Mary Maguire
Ian Davis/Tinu Olowe/Jeremy Chambers

Key Decision:

No

Purpose of Report
1. The Council has a statutory duty to publish its gender pay gap annually on the UK
Government website. It is also required to publish this information on the Council
website. Although it is not a statutory requirement to publish the Council’s ethnicity
pay gap as part of the Council’s commitment to tackle inequality it is considered that
this report is an important tool to help achieve this and will support the Council’s
ambition to embed a diverse and inclusive culture.
2. The purpose of this report is to provide the Staff Appeals, Appointments &
Remuneration Committee with an overview of the Council’s gender and ethnicity pay
gap, along with the reports that will be published on the Council’s website.
Proposal(s)
3. This report is for noting.
Reason for Proposal(s)
4. To ensure the Council is compliant with its statutory obligations in relation to
statutory gender pay gap reporting.
5. To report the Council’s ethnicity, pay gap to ensure the Council is transparent and as
part of the Council’s commitment to tackle inequality.
6. To report on actions taken to address the pay gaps and proposals for the coming
year.
Relevance to the Council Plan
7. The Gender Pay Gap report meets our statutory duties.
8. Both the Gender Pay Gap report and the Ethnicity Pay Gap report supports the
Council’s commitment to improve equality and diversity as reflected in the Council
Plan 2020-22 and the Fairer Enfield, Equality and Diversity Policy and Plan 20212025.

Main Considerations for the Council

CE 20/043

Page 6
2
9. Gender Pay Gap (Appendix 1)
a. In 2017, the Government introduced regulations requiring all employers in
Great Britain with more than 250 staff to publish calculations annually showing
the pay gap between their male and female employees. The gender pay gap
is the difference between the average earnings of all men and women. The
following calculations are required to fulfil these statutory responsibilities
i. Gender pay gap (mean and median averages)
ii. Gender bonus gap (mean and median averages)
iii. Proportion of men and women receiving bonuses
iv. Proportion of men and women in each quartile of the organisation’s
pay structure
b. The Gender pay gap is the difference between women’s and men’s pay,
expressed as a percentage of men’s pay. Where a measure carries a minus
figure, women are paid more, with a positive figure indicating higher pay for
men.
c. For the purpose of the above calculations the mean is based on the average
earnings for all staff. The medium calculation is the central point of the data
set.
d. Although the Organisations are required to report the pay gap against
bonuses, the Council does not award any bonus payments. Therefore, this
will be shown as zero in the report.
e. The gender pay gap is different to equal pay. Equal pay deals with the pay
differences between men and women who carry out the same jobs or similar
jobs or work of equal value. It is unlawful to pay people unequally because
they are a man or a woman.
f. The deadlines for organisations to produce and publish their gender pay gap
is the 31 March for the 12 month period ending on the previous 31 March, e.g.
the 2020 gender pay gap based on data as at 31 March 2020 must be
published on 31 March 2021. Due to the impact of Covid-19 the publishing
deadline for 2019 and 2020 has been relaxed.
g. The gender pay gap for the 4-year period ending March 2020 is shown in the
table below:

Pay rates

Gender pay
gap
2019/20

Gender pay
gap
2018/19

Gender pay
gap
2017/18

Gender pay
gap
2016/17

Mean hourly rate

2.6%

3.9%

4.5%

6.4%

Median hourly
rate

-3.1%

-6.1%

-2.9%

1.5%

h. The above table shows a gradual decrease in the mean pay gap and a
median pay gap in favour of women.
i. The Council compares favourably with both local businesses and other
London local authorities (section How do we Compare in Appendix 1).

Page 7
3
10. Ethnicity Pay Gap (Appendix 2)
a. It is not a statutory requirement to publish ethnicity pay gap but as part of the
Council’s commitment to tackle inequality, this report is an important tool to
help the Council to identify the scale of the gap and put measures in place to
address these. It will also support the Council’s ambition to embed a diverse
and inclusive culture.
b. The ethnicity pay gap for the 3-year period ending March 2020 is shown in the
table
below:

Ethnic Minority Ethnic
pay gap
Minority
2019/20
gap
2018/19

Pay rates

Ethnic
pay Minority
gap
2017/18

Mean hourly rate 9.5%

10.5%

9.7%

Median
rate

5.8%

9.2%

hourly

3%

pay

c. For the purpose of the above statistics ‘White’ includes British, English, any
other white background, Greek or Greek Cypriot, Irish, Any white, Scottish,
Turkish or Turkish Cypriot and Welsh and ‘Ethnic Minority’ includes all other
categories shown in Table 1 of the Ethnicity Pay Gap Report (Appendix 2)
d. The overall impact on the Council’s ethnicity pay gap has seen a gradual
decrease in the mean pay gap and a median pay gap.
e. The Council’s ethnicity pay gap is higher than the national average but
compares favourably with the London ethnicity pay gap as reported by the
Office of National Statistics (Ethnicity pay gaps: 2019, ONS October 2020).
11. Impact of manual workers in lower grades
The Council employs a high number of manual workers that tend to be on lower pay
grades. Up to March 2020 the gender balance of manual workers has been
relatively equal (Scale 1 to 3 or salary equivalent is 329 women compared with 340
men*). Black, Asian and other Minority Ethnic staff represent 32.6% of overall staff
on Scales 1 to 3 or salary equivalent. Following the insourcing of the cleaning
service from Enfield Norse and staff previously employed by Independence &
Wellbeing Enfield, it is expected that this could have a negative impact on the gender
and ethnicity split in lower graded roles as higher numbers of women and ethnic
minority staff are employed as cleaners and care workers on lower pay grades. This
could have a detrimental impact on both gender and ethnicity pay gap reporting in
future years.
* HR Annual Workforce Report as at 31 March 2020
12. What is the Council doing to address the Gender and Ethnicity Pay Gap?
a. Senior Level Recruitment
Over the past three years the Council has successfully appointed women to
vacant posts within the top tiers of its management structure and increased
the number of staff from ethnic minority backgrounds in the top 3 tiers of

Page 8
4
leadership posts (HOS3 and above) from 11.4% to 22.38%.
b. Fairer Enfield – Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
This policy sets out Enfield Council’s approach to equality, diversity and
inclusion. It outlines the Council’s vision for an equal and socially inclusive
borough and describes how implementing good practice on equality, diversity
and inclusion helps the Council deliver its wider health, social and economic
aims. It also includes the Council’s equality objectives, required as part of the
Public Sector Equality Duty. In relation to reducing the ethnicity pay gap and
increasing representation in our workforce we have committed to:
i. Increase the representation of Black and ethnic minorities in
leadership positions across the Council’s workforce, so that it is
proportionately representative of Enfield’s ethnic minority population by
2030.
ii. Provide training on unconscious bias which includes language and
structural racism, as part of our equalities training programme.
c. Levelling the ‘playing field’ for all Recruitment
The Council is committed to remove all bias and ensure all applicants are
considered equally. All hiring managers and interview panel members are
required to complete our internal Recruitment and Selection training to ensure
they are competent interviewers and understand the risk of unconscious bias.
All interview panels are required to be representative of both gender and
ethnicity. In 2018 the Council introduced ‘name blind’ recruitment at the shortlisting stage.
d. Enfield Council’s Staff Network Groups
i. The Council’s Ethnic Minority Network (EMN) is a staff voluntary
group, led by a Board and two Co-Chairs. The Board is committed in
supporting the Council to ensure we have a diverse and inclusive
organisation, and a progressive place to work. The network is also
committed in supporting the senior leadership team to addressing the
low representation of staff from Black and Ethnic Minority backgrounds
in Leadership roles within the organisation, and the challenges faced
by staff from a minority background. The Ethnic Minority Network has
been established to drive the agenda in supporting and delivering
initiatives that will bring lasting change.
ii. The Women into Leadership Board is made up of volunteers across
the Council and was originally formed in April 2018. The remit of the
board is to consider barriers women may face in the workplace and
identify initiatives to overcome these barriers, including support to
empower female employees to aspire to reach their full potential.
iii. Both groups have arranged several events to support staff including
successful Black History Month events and the annual International
Women’s Day Conference.
e. Enfield Council Career Returner Programme
i. The Council’s award-winning Career Returner @ Enfield programme
continues to support local talented professionals who have taken a
prolonged career break, to return to their chosen profession.
Recognising that there is a local ‘untapped’ pool of talented
professionals waiting to return to work we developed Career Returners
@ Enfield Programme, a six month ‘returnship’ (higher-level
internship). Although this programme is open to both men and

Page 9
5
women, the majority of ‘sandwich’ carers within our society are women
and a high proportion are from an ethnic minority background.
ii. Overall, the retention rate of staff who joined via a career returner
programme has been very good. Across the three cohorts twenty-two
returners who accepted on-going employment, seventeen remain in
our employment. 71% of those remaining in our employment are from
an ethnic minority background.
f.

Learning & Organisational Development Activity
Raising awareness and training is an integral part of ensuring Council staff
understand their responsibilities and the Council’s expectations. The Council
provides a range of training and support to enable staff to manage and/or
work within a diverse workforce, including:
i. Equality and Diversity in the Workplace
This is mandatory for all new joiners and increases awareness of
equality and diversity in the workplace; the expectations on employees
in terms of their behaviour; practical help in challenging unlawful
discrimination or inappropriate behaviour.
ii. Recruitment & Selection
This is mandatory for all recruiting managers and provides practical
exercises and opportunities for deeper discussion, including improved
section on obligations and responsibilities with regards equality,
diversity and inclusion as well as unconscious bias.
iii. Unconscious Bias
Where ‘unconscious biases’ play out in the workplace, this e-learning
short course helps officers get to grips with unconscious bias, in order
to identify, acknowledge and challenge it in the workplace.
iv. BLM Kickstart conversations
Workshop and toolkit for managers to encourage and support them to
have difficult conversations, give voice to their teams, and develop an
action plan to help create respectful, diverse and inclusive workplaces.
In addition to the above the following courses and programmes will
form part of the Council’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Programme
over the next year:
Inclusive Leadership
Unconscious Bias Workshop
Mentoring Programme
Black on Board Programme (Designed to train and mentor
Black, ethnic minority candidates to take up board positions)
Threshold one day career development workshop (Tailored for
female Black, ethnic minority staff to take a fresh look at
individual career path and opportunities).
v. Tackling Race Inequality Together
A number of staff from the Council have volunteered to be part of a
pan London workshop brought together through the London Councils
to identify and address key issues with regards to inequality within
Local Government. Examples of some of the workshops will include:
‘Demonstrating Leadership, Doing more together as large employers
and Developing and showcasing best practice’. The learning
outcomes from these workshops will be used to tackle race inequality
across London Councils, including Enfield.

g. Over the coming year the following courses and programmes will form part of
the Council’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Programme:

Page 10
6



Unconscious Bias Workshop
Mentoring Programme (revised and updated programme of support)

h. Moving Forward
The Council is looking to introduce further initiatives to complement our existing
programmes and promote our equalities agenda. For example:






The work of the Women into Leadership Board will continue with further
work and events planned.
Recruitment to a 4th Career Returner Programme is being planned.
Creation of a Diversity and Inclusion Consultant role to embed EDI
learning initiatives into our workforce
Continue the roll out of the Inspirational Leadership Programme and
Aspirational Leadership Programme.
Develop in partnership with other councils a career development
programme targeting support for staff of all characteristics to help them
progress within their careers.

These initiatives will support staff to successfully progress within the Council’s
hierarchy.

13. The Gender Pay Gap Report (Appendix 1) and Ethnicity Pay Gap Report (Appendix
2) provide further analysis.
Safeguarding Implications
14. No safeguarding implications have been identified as a result of these reports.
Public Health Implications
15. No public health implications have been identified as a result of these reports.
Equalities Impact of the Proposal
16. The reports identify the equalities impact for both gender and ethnicity and highlight
the Councils plans to reduce any inequality relating to pay gaps.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
17. No environmental and climate change implications have been identified as a result of
these reports.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will be
taken to manage these risks
18. The Council will be compliant with its statutory duty to report and publish its Gender
Pay Gap.
Financial Implications

Page 11
7
19. There are no financial implications arising as a result of reporting the Gender and
Ethnicity pay gap.
Legal Implications

20. This report provides information on mandatory Gender Pay Gap reporting under the
Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017 (The
Regulations). The Gender Pay Gap (GPG) is the gap between men and women’s
average pay. The gender pay gap is always expressed as a percentage. It is
calculated by working out the difference between the average pay of all male
employees and the average pay of all female employees and dividing that number by
the average pay of all male employees. A negative pay gap figure would mean that
the average pay of men is lower than the average pay of women.
The “snapshot date” by which to report the GPG, for public bodies, such as local
authorities, is 31 March.
The Regulations impose a reporting duty on affected public sector employers that
obliges them to publish information demonstrating compliance with the Public Sector
Equality Duty (PSED). Schedule 2 to the Regulations provides that public authorities
are required to publish their gender pay information, if they have 250 or employees
on the relevant snapshot date. ” Employee” is not defined in the Regulations.
However, the gender pay gap reporting duties themselves only apply in respect of
“relevant employees”.
In view of the COVID-19 crisis, any enforcement of breaches of the GPG reporting
obligation deadlines has been suspended until 5 October 2021.
Ethnicity pay reporting
21. In contrast to mandatory Gender Pay Gap reporting obligations by local authorities,
there is no legal requirement to undertake ethnicity pay reporting. On 11 October
2018, the government launched a consultation paper, ‘Ethnicity pay reporting’,
setting out its proposals for a mandatory approach along similar lines to Gender Pay
Gap reporting, which was introduced in April 2017.Some organisations are already
reporting on ethnicity pay gap but others do not have the data. In an answer to a
recent Parliamentary written question on 3 March 2021, BEIS indicated that following
its 2018 consultation, it has found, from its methodology testing exercise, that there
are difficulties in designing a methodology that will produce accurate figures that
facilitate analysis, interpretation and meaningful action for ethnicity pay gap
reporting. The government is continuing to analyse data from its methodology testing
exercise and will respond to the consultation as soon as it can.

Workforce Implications
22. The Council is committed to address inequality and these reports identify what action
has been taken along with further action planned to reduce the pay gap in relation to
gender and ethnicity.
23. The Council should continue to monitor and publish its pay gaps and use this to
inform further initiatives and training requirements.
Property Implications
24. No property implications have been identified as a result of the new Regulations.

Page 12
8
Other Implications
25. None identified
Options Considered
26. The Council is not obliged to publish its Ethnicity Pay Gap, however, by not doing so
it is not identifying a benchmark to monitor future performance against one of the
Council’s identified objectives in the Fairer Enfield policy.
Conclusions
27. The Council has a statutory duty to publish its gender pay gap annually on the UK
Government website. It is also required to publish this information on the Council
website.
28. Although it is not a statutory requirement to publish the Council’s ethnicity pay gap as
part of the Council’s commitment to tackle inequality it is considered that this report
is an important tool to help achieve this and will support the Council’s ambition to
embed a diverse and inclusive culture.
Report Author:

Date of report:

Julie Mimnagh
Head of HR Operations
Julie.mimnagh@enfield.gov.uk
02081320022
6 April 2021

Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Gender Pay Gap Report 2020
Appendix 2 – Ethnicity Pay Gap Report 2020
Background Papers
The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report:
Fairer Enfield, Equality and Diversity Policy and Plan 2021-2025

Page 13

CE 20/043

Page 14
Appendix 1

2020 Gender Pay Gap Report
Background
Enfield Council is committed to supporting and promoting the fair and equal treatment of
all staff irrespective of gender, ethnicity or indeed any of the protected characteristics
identified under the Equalities Act 2010.
In 2017, the Government introduced regulations requiring all employers in Great Britain
with more than 250 staff to publish calculations annually showing the pay gap between
their male and female employees. The gender pay gap is the difference between the
average earnings of all men and women. The following calculations are required to fulfil
these statutory responsibilities:





Gender pay gap (mean and median averages)
Gender bonus gap (mean and median averages)
Proportion of men and women receiving bonuses
Proportion of men and women in each quartile of the organisation’s pay structure

The gender pay gap is different to equal pay. Equal pay deals with the pay differences
between men and women who carry out the same jobs or similar jobs or work of equal
value. It is unlawful to pay people unequally because they are a man or a woman.

CE 20/027

Page 15
11
Analysis – Table 1
Statutory part of template (data that must be provided
under the Equalities Act)

Pay rates

Mean
hourly
rate
(Male hrly rate Female hrly rate) / Male
hrly rate x 100
Median hourly rate
(as above calc but for
median hourly rates)

Gender pay gap - the difference
between women's pay and men's
pay as a percentage of men’s pay
(minus % means women have
higher pay, positive % means
men have higher pay)

Gender pay
gap
women's pay
as
a
percentage of
men’s pay

Hourly rate of
women

Hourly
rate
of
men

Difference
£

2.6%

97.4%

£18.26

£18.74

-£0.48

-3.1%

103.1%

£16.40

£15.90

£0.50

Pay Quartile Information
Pay quartiles
Proportion of women
and men in the upper
quartile (paid above
the 75th percentile
point)
Proportion of women
and men in the upper
middle quartile (paid
above the median and
at or below the 75th
percentile point)
Proportion of women
and men in the lower
middle quartile (paid
above
the
25th
percentile point and at
or below the median)
Proportion of women
and men in the lower
quartile (paid below
the 25th percentile
point)

Possible extra data for local collection by London
Councils for local benchmarking*

Workforce composition
Women

Men

Total

61%

39%

100%

67%

67%

51%

33%

33%

49%

Women
headcount

Men
headcount

Total
headcou
nt

449

286

735

489

246

735

493

242

735

372
Bonus
Gender Pay
Gap
women's
bonus as a %
of
men's
bonus

362

734

Bonus pay of
women

Bonus
pay
of
men

Difference
£

100%

100%

100%

Bonus pay

Bonus Gender Pay Gap - the
difference
between
women's
bonus and men's bonus as a % of
men's bonus

Mean bonus

0.0%

100.0%

£0

£0

£0

Median bonus

0.0%

100.0%

£0

£0

£0

Bonuses paid
Women paid bonus as
% of all women
Men paid bonus as %
of all men

0%
0%

Page 16
12
How do we compare?
It should be noted that, due to the continuing impact of the Coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic, the gender pay gap reporting deadline for employers has been extended to 5
October 2021. Therefore, the benchmark comparisons below are based on reported
figures for 2020 and based on actual gender pay gap information as at 31 March 2019.
Comparison with Enfield businesses
There are twenty-five businesses with headquarters in Enfield1 who meet the criteria to
submit their Gender Pay data to the UK Government. Unfortunately, only fourteen of
these companies have submitted their data for the most recent period, making a full
comparison difficult2. As the chart below illustrates, two such companies pay women
more than men on both the mean and median measures, with a further three employers
(including Enfield Council) reporting a mean pay gap in favour of men alongside a
median pay gap in favour of women.
Chart: Enfield Council and Other Enfield-based employers: Pay Gap data

Comparison with other London boroughs as employers

1

Metaswitch is included in this analysis, even though their headquarters have now moved outside the
borough.
2
The UK Government suspended the March 2020 reporting deadline for GPG statistics for 2018/19 due to
Covid-19. This will account for fewer organisations reporting their latest GPG figures.

Page 17
13





Fifteen of London’s 33 boroughs have not submitted data for the period (as at
July 2020), so we can only compare Enfield with the 17 other boroughs who did.
The map below shows the Mean Hourly Rate Gender Pay Gap (Map 2a below)
for the boroughs who supplied data. Eight of these have a mean hourly rate
favouring woman. Lewisham’s mean hourly rate gender gap is over 10% in
favour of female employees.
Boroughs in which women are paid more than men on this measure tend to be in
central, east and south London.

Map: Enfield Council and other London boroughs as employers: Mean hourly
rate Gender Pay Gap

Page 18
14

Map: Enfield Council and other London boroughs as employers: Median hourly
rate pay gap

When we consider the Median hourly rate (Map above), the picture across London is
broadly similar: alongside Enfield, there are seven authorities in which women are paid
a higher rate. Again, these are mostly located in central, east and south London.

How we are addressing equality within the workplace
We aim to recruit from the widest possible talent pool.
“Enfield has a vibrant and diverse community and here at Enfield Council we want a
workforce that reflects the local people we serve. More importantly we want a diverse
workforce because we recognise this brings new experiences and fresh ideas that will
benefit how we work and how we serve our community”
Ian Davis, Chief Executive
Enfield has set out the Council’s vision, aims and priorities for 2020-2022 with equality at
the heart of our guiding principles.
Diversity means appreciating the value of differences between individuals and groups.
By celebrating the rich diversity, culture and heritage of our community we show respect
to residents and our workforce. Promoting the benefits of a diverse community helps to

Page 19
15
break down barriers and negative attitudes and helps to promote social cohesion and
good community relations.
Enfield Council Plan 2020-2022
Senior Level Recruitment
Over the past three years the Council has successfully appointed women to vacant
posts within the very top tiers of our management structure. This has enabled us to
increase female representation in the upper quartile as well as reducing the pay gap at
this level.
The overall impact on the Council’s gender pay gap has seen a gradual decrease in the
mean pay gap and a median pay gap in favour of women. This is summarised in Table
2 below:
Table 2 – Summary
Gender
gap
2019/20

Pay rates

pay Gender
gap
2018/19

pay Gender
gap
2017/18

pay Gender
gap
2016/17

Mean hourly rate 2.6%

3.9%

4.5%

6.4%

Median
rate

-6.1%

-2.9%

1.5%

hourly

-3.1%

pay

Fairer Enfield – Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
This policy sets out Enfield Council’s approach to equality, diversity and inclusion. It
outlines our vision for an equal and socially inclusive borough and describes how
implementing good practice on equality, diversity and inclusion helps the Council deliver
its wider health, social and economic aims.
This policy sets out how we are meeting our Public Sector Equality Duty under the
Equality Act 2010, which requires us to demonstrate due regard to the need to:




advance equal opportunities
eliminate unlawful discrimination
foster good relations

It also includes our equality objectives, required as part of the Public Sector Equality
Duty.
The policy sets out the principles everyone who works for Enfield must follow in order to
uphold our duties under the Act as a service provider, commissioner, employer and
community leader.

Page 20
16
The policy should be considered alongside other key documents which set out the
expectations and requirements on everyone who works for the Council. The diagram
below shows how this policy relates to other key policies and strategies.

Levelling the ‘playing field’ for all Recruitment
The Council is keen to remove all bias and ensure all applicants are considered equally.
We require all hiring managers and interview panel members to complete our internal
Recruitment and Selection training to ensure they are competent interviewers and
understand the risk of unconscious bias. All interview panels are required to be
representative of both gender and ethnicity. In 2018 the Council introduced ‘name blind’
recruitment at the short-listing stage.
To ensure we reach a wide pool of candidates we advertise our vacancies on a range of
job boards including Diversity Jobs specifically designed to attract diverse candidate.

Enfield Council’s Women into Leadership Board
The Women into Leadership Board is made up of volunteers across the Council and was
originally formed in April 2018. The remit of the board is to consider barriers women
may face in the workplace and identify initiatives to overcome these barriers, including
support to empower female employees to aspire to reach their full potential. The Board
has six workstreams that focus on different initiatives including:







Networking sessions
Communications
HR
Events
Health & Wellbeing
International Women’s Day Conference

Page 21
17
The Board has hosted three successful International Women’s Day conferences, all
attended by well over one hundred employees from all parts of the Council. We have
been lucky to have some notable and motivational speakers including, Baroness Tanni
Grey-Thomson, Liz Earle MBE, Jinjer Kandola, Helen Millichap and Maria Kane. All
events hosted by the Board are open to all employees and are well attended. Speakers
include career coaches, trainers and motivational speakers (both internal and external).
The networking events provide opportunities for informal coaching and mentoring. The
events and newsletters have promoted greater awareness of how women can get into
leadership roles. Since the Board was first launched the Council has been able to
unlock internal talent that has seen women successfully applying for jobs and gaining
progression.
Enfield Council Career Returner Programme
The Council’s award-winning Career Returner @ Enfield programme continues to
support local talented professionals who have taken a prolonged career break, to return
to their chosen profession. Recognising that there is a local ‘untapped’ pool of talented
professionals waiting to return to work we developed Career Returners @ Enfield
Programme, a six month ‘returnship’ (higher-level internship). Although this programme
is open to both men and women, the majority of ‘sandwich’ carers within our society are
women and the majority of applicants to this programme were women who had taken a
career break to look after young children or elderly relatives. The Council has now
successfully recruited three cohorts over the past three years and is now planning it’s
fourth cohort.
Six career returners were recruited to the first programme in 2017, all successful
applicants were women and all secured on-going employment with the Council.
Following the success of the first programme the Council recruited fifteen returners to
the 2018 cohort, again all successful applicants were women. At the end of the second
programme, all applicants were offered on-going employment but two declined for
personal reasons. Five career returners joined the third cohort in September 2019 and
four of the five successful candidates were women. At the end of the third programme,
three applicants were offered on-going employment (one applicant decided to leave
early for personal reasons).
Overall, the retention rate of staff who joined via a career returner programme has been
very good. Across the three cohorts twenty-two returners who accepted on-going
employment, seventeen remain in our employment.
Learning & Organisational Development Activity
As part of Enfield’s commitment as an employer, we believe raising awareness and
training is an integral part of ensuring our staff understand their responsibilities and the
Council’s expectations. We want to be an organisation where local people choose to
work and develop good careers, where staff from different backgrounds work together
harmoniously and productively and everyone feels valued. We provide a range of
training and support to enable staff to manage and/or work within a diverse workforce,
including:

Page 22
18






Equality and Diversity in the Workplace
This is mandatory for all new joiners and increases awareness of equality and
diversity in the workplace; the expectations on employees in terms of their
behaviour; practical help in challenging unlawful discrimination or inappropriate
behaviour.
Recruitment & Selection
This is mandatory for all recruiting managers and provides practical exercises
and opportunities for deeper discussion, including improved section on
obligations and responsibilities with regards equality, diversity and inclusion as
well as unconscious bias.
Unconscious Bias
Where ‘unconscious biases’ play out in the workplace, this e-learning short
course helps officers get to grips with unconscious bias, in order to identify,
acknowledge and challenge it in the workplace.

Over the coming year the following courses and programmes will form part of the
Council’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Programme:





Inclusive Leadership
Unconscious Bias Workshop
Mentoring Programme (revised and updated programme of support)
Threshold one day career development workshop
Tailored for female Black, ethnic minority staff to take a fresh look at individual
career path and opportunities.

Moving Forward
The Council is looking to introduce further initiatives to complement our existing
programmes and promote our equalities agenda. For example:
 The work of the Women into Leadership Board will continue with further work and
events planned.
 Recruitment to a 4th Career Returner Programme is being planned.
 Creation of a Diversity and Inclusion Consultant role to embed EDI learning
initiatives into our workforce
 Continue the roll out of the Inspirational Leadership Programme and Aspirational
Leadership Programme.
 Develop in partnership with other councils a career development programme
targeting support for staff of all characteristics to help them progress within their
careers.
These initiatives will support staff to successfully progress within the Council’s hierarchy.

Page 23
19
Appendix 2

2020 Ethnicity Pay Gap Report
Background
Enfield Council is committed to supporting and promoting the fair and equal treatment of
all staff irrespective of gender, ethnicity or indeed any of the protected characteristics
identified under the Equalities Act 2010.
Although it is not a statutory requirement to publish our ethnicity pay gap as part of the
Council’s commitment to tackle inequality we believe this report is an important tool to
help us achieve this and will support our ambition to embed a diverse and inclusive
culture.
This report provides analysis around the ethnic cohort of the workforce and the
respective pay gap in terms of different ethnic cohorts.
Analysis
Table 1 below shows the number and percentage of staff at the different grades within
the organisation. Ethnic minority employees represent 33.3% of our workforce as of 31
March 2020.
Table 1 – Workforce Ethnicity Profile at 31 March 2020

‘Unknown’ and ‘Refused’ is where an individual has indicated they ‘preferred not to say’.

Page 24
20

Tables 2 & 3 below shows the Ethnicity Pay Gap for Enfield Council (based on hourly
rates) as at 31 March 2020.
Table 2 - 2020 Ethnicity Pay Gap
2020 Ethnicity Pay Gap
Ethnic
Mean
White
£
19.14
Asian
£
18.74
Black
£
16.65
Mixed
£
18.14
Other
£
17.41
Unknown
£
17.49

Difference
£
0.40
£
2.49
£
1.00
£
1.73
£
1.65

Median
£
16.40
£
16.40
£
15.90
£
16.40
£
17.10
£
15.34

Difference
£
£
0.50
£
-£
0.70
£
1.06

All Ethnic Minority

£

£

£

£

17.33

1.81

15.90

0.50

Table 3 - 2020 Ethnicity Pay Gap shown as percentage difference percentage of
pay
MEAN _ Ethnic Pay
gap (difference
between Non-White
Ethnic Minority pay
and White Ethnicity
pay as a
percentage of
White Ethnicity
Pay)
(Minus means NonWhite Ethnic
Minority have
higher pay, positive
means White
Ethnicity have
higher pay)

Asian
Black
Mixed
Other
Unknown
All Ethnic Minority

2.1%
13.0%
5.2%
9.0%
8.6%
9.5%

How do we compare?

MEAN - Ethnicity
Pay Gap - Non-White
Ethnic Minority as a
percentage of White
Ethnicity Pay

97.91%
86.99%
94.78%
90.96%
91.38%
90.54%

MEDIAN _ Ethnic Pay
gap (difference
between Non-White
Ethnic Minority pay
and White Ethnicity
pay as a percentage of
White Ethnicity Pay)
(Minus means NonWhite ethnic have
higher pay, positive
means White Ethnicity
have higher pay)

0.0%
3.0%
0.0%
-4.3%
6.5%
3.0%

MEDIAN - Ethnicity
Pay Gap - NonWhite Ethnic
Minority as a
percentage of
White Ethnicity Pay

100.0%
97.0%
100.0%
104.3%
93.5%
97.0%

Page 25
21
The Office of National Statistics published a report in October 2020, Ethnicity pay gaps:
2019. In 2019, the median hourly pay for those in the White ethnic group was £12.40
per hour compared with those in ethnic minority at £12.11 per hour – a pay gap of 2.3%,
its narrowest level since 2012. The ethnicity pay gap differs across regions and is
largest in London (23.8%) and smallest in Wales (1.4%). Adjusted pay gaps vary
subnationally, with London often having wider pay gaps.
The Council’s workforce compares favourably with our local population. Enfield is
among the most ethnically diverse areas in the country. The table below sets out the
different groups in Enfield compared with London and England based on data collected
in the 2011 Census. (Note that the census allowed respondents to identify their ethnicity
more specifically. This information is not yet available and will be provided in a
subsequent Census release.)

How we are addressing equality within the workplace
We aim to recruit from the widest possible talent pool.
“Enfield has a vibrant and diverse community and here at Enfield Council we want a
workforce that reflects the local people we serve. More importantly we want a diverse
workforce because we recognise this brings new experiences and fresh ideas that will
benefit how we work and how we serve our community”
Ian Davis, Chief Executive
Enfield has set out the Council’s vision, aims and priorities for 2020-2022 with equality at
the heart of our guiding principles.
Looking ahead, we aim to develop an ‘empowered, responsive and happy workforce

Page 26
22
We will:




Enable managers to develop strong leadership skills and create an environment
where staff can do their best.
Inspire, protect and promote equality and diversity within our workforce and
reduce the ethnicity pay gap.
Tackle low pay and poverty by always paying our staff at least the London Living
Wage; offering no zero-hour contracts; and by working with our suppliers and
commissioned service providers so that they do the same’.

Enfield Council Plan 2020-2022
Senior Level Recruitment
Over the past three years the Council has increased the number of staff from an ethnic
minority background in the top 3 tiers of leadership posts (HOS3 and above) from 11.4%
to 22.38%. This has enabled us to increase ethnic minority representation in our senior
management structure and narrow the overall ethnicity pay gap.
The overall impact on the Council’s ethnicity pay gap has seen a gradual decrease in the
mean pay gap and a median pay gap. This is summarised in Table 2 below:
Table 4 – Ethnicity Pay Gap Summary
Ethnic Minority Ethnic
pay gap
Minority
2019/20
gap
2018/19

Pay rates
Mean
Median

hourly
hourly

Ethnic
pay Minority
gap
2017/18

rate 9.5%

10.5%

9.7%

rate 3%

5.8%

9.2%

pay

‘White’ includes British, English, Any other white background, Greek or Greek Cypriot,
Irish, Any white, Scottish, Turkish or Turkish Cypriot and Welsh
‘Ethnic Minority’ includes all other categories shown in Table 1 above.
Fairer Enfield – Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
This policy sets out Enfield Council’s approach to equality, diversity and inclusion. It
outlines our vision for an equal and socially inclusive borough and describes how
implementing good practice on equality, diversity and inclusion helps the Council deliver
its wider health, social and economic aims.
This policy sets out how we are meeting our Public Sector Equality Duty under the
Equality Act 2010, which requires us to demonstrate due regard to the need to:




advance equal opportunities
eliminate unlawful discrimination
foster good relations

Page 27
23
It also includes our equality objectives, required as part of the Public Sector Equality
Duty. In relation to reducing the ethnicity pay gap and increasing representation in our
workforce we have committed to:


Increase the representation of Black and ethnic minorities in leadership positions
across the Council’s workforce, so that it is proportionately representative of
Enfield’s ethnic minority population by 2030.



Provide training on unconscious bias which includes language and structural
racism, as part of our equalities training programme.

The policy sets out the principles everyone who works for Enfield must follow in order to
uphold our duties under the Act as a service provider, commissioner, employer and
community leader.
The policy should be considered alongside other key documents which set out the
expectations and requirements on everyone who works for the Council. The diagram
below shows how this policy relates to other key policies and strategies.

Levelling the ‘playing field’ for all Recruitment
The Council is keen to remove all bias and ensure all applicants are considered equally.
We require all hiring managers and interview panel members to complete our internal
Recruitment and Selection training to ensure they are competent interviewers and
understand the risk of unconscious bias. All interview panels are required to be
representative of both gender and ethnicity. In 2018 the Council introduced ‘name blind’
recruitment at the short-listing stage.
To ensure we reach a wide pool of candidates we advertise our vacancies on a range of
job boards including Diversity Jobs specifically designed to attract diverse candidate.

Page 28
24
Enfield Council’s Ethnic Minority Network
The Council’s Ethnic Minority Network (EMN) staff group is committed to addressing the
low representation of staff from Black and Ethnic Minority backgrounds in Leadership
roles within the organisation. The Ethnic Minority Network has been established to drive
the agenda and deliver initiatives that will bring lasting change.



The Network aims to remove the barriers to career progression, both structural
and personal, that prevent staff developing and working to their full potential
Promote the inclusion of staff from ethnic minority backgrounds in all aspects of
the council's activity and welcome the diversity of staff and embrace their rich
cultural heritage in the workforce

The EMN has delivered a number of events including regular network events throughout
the year and an annual celebration of Black History Month. The focus of the group over
the past year has included mentoring, evaluation and benchmarking, learning &
development, Covid-19 and Black History Month. The group have also worked tirelessly
since last summer in response to Black Lives Matters (BLM) and has run staff focus
groups and a series of raising awareness sessions.
EMN has also developed a ‘BLM Kickstart Discussions’ workshop for senior and middle
managers, which began life by EMN working with Children’s Services, who wanted to be
pro-active in starting discussions among their team. The workshop aims to give
managers the tools to have those difficult conversations with their staff and teams and
plans to make real changes that will keep those conversations going and make equality
and inclusion a conscious part of the working day. The workshop is being rolled out
across the Council.
Enfield Council Career Returner Programme
The Council’s award-winning Career Returner @ Enfield programme continues to
support local talented professionals who have taken a prolonged career break, to return
to their chosen profession. Recognising that there is a local ‘untapped’ pool of talented
professionals waiting to return to work we developed Career Returners @ Enfield
Programme, a six month ‘returnship’ (higher-level internship). Although this programme
is open to both men and women, the majority of ‘sandwich’ carers within our society are
women and a high proportion are from an ethnic minority background. The majority of
applicants to this programme were women who had taken a career break to look after
young children or elderly relatives. The Council has now successfully recruited three
cohorts over the past three years and is now planning it’s fourth cohort.
Six career returners were recruited to the first programme in 2017, all successful
applicants were women and 50% were ethnic minority. Following the success of the first
programme the Council recruited fifteen returners to the 2018 cohort, again all
successful applicants were women and 60% were ethnic minority. Five career returners
joined the third cohort in September 2019, four were women and 75% ethnic minority.

Page 29
25
Overall, the retention rate of staff who joined via a career returner programme has been
very good. Across the three cohorts twenty-two returners who accepted on-going
employment, seventeen remain in our employment. 71% of those remaining in our
employment are from an ethnic minority background.

Learning & Organisational Development Activity
As part of Enfield’s commitment as an employer, we believe raising awareness and
training is an integral part of ensuring our staff understand their responsibilities and the
Council’s expectations. We want to be an organisation where local people choose to
work and develop good careers, where staff from different backgrounds work together
harmoniously and productively and everyone feels valued. We provide a range of
training and support to enable staff to manage and/or work within a diverse workforce,
including:








Equality and Diversity in the Workplace
This is mandatory for all new joiners and increases awareness of equality and
diversity in the workplace; the expectations on employees in terms of their
behaviour; practical help in challenging unlawful discrimination or inappropriate
behaviour.
Recruitment & Selection
This is mandatory for all recruiting managers and provides practical exercises
and opportunities for deeper discussion, including improved section on
obligations and responsibilities with regards equality, diversity and inclusion as
well as unconscious bias.
Unconscious Bias
Where ‘unconscious biases’ play out in the workplace, this e-learning short
course helps officers get to grips with unconscious bias, in order to identify,
acknowledge and challenge it in the workplace.
BLM Kickstart conversations
Workshop and toolkit for managers to encourage and support them to have
difficult conversations, give voice to their teams, and develop an action plan to
help create respectful, diverse and inclusive workplaces.

Over the coming year the following courses and programmes will form part of the
Council’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Programme:







Inclusive Leadership
Unconscious Bias Workshop
Mentoring Programme (revised and updated programme of support)
Black on Board Programme
Designed to train and mentor Black, ethnic minority candidates to take up board
positions (Lead by Enfield Council in partnership with other boroughs;
Southwark, Richmond & Wandsworth, Islington).
Threshold one day career development workshop
Tailored for female Black, ethnic minority staff to take a fresh look at individual
career path and opportunities.

Page 30
26
Moving Forward
The Council is looking to introduce further initiatives to complement our existing
programmes and promote our equalities agenda. For example:
 The work of the Ethnic Minority Staff Group will continue with further work and
events planned.
 Recruitment to a 4th Career Returner Programme is being planned.
 Creation of a Diversity and Inclusion Consultant role to embed EDI learning
initiatives into our workforce
 Continue the roll out of the Inspirational Leadership Programme and Aspirational
Leadership Programme.
 Develop in partnership with other councils a career development programme
targeting support for staff of all characteristics to help them progress within their
careers.
These initiatives will support staff to successfully progress within the Council’s hierarchy.

Page 31

Agenda Item 5

London Borough of Enfield

Committee Name: Staff Appeals, Appointments & Remuneration Committee
Meeting Date: 29 April 2021

Subject:

Review of Resources Senior Management Structure

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire, Cabinet Member for Finance

Executive Director: Fay Hammond, Executive Director Resources
Key Decision:

N/A

Purpose of Report
1.

Following an independent review of the finance structure undertaken by
CIPFA (the professional body for Public Sector Accountants), and
consideration of this report by the Section 151 officer. This report seeks
authority to restructure the Director tier of the Resources Directorate.

Proposals
2. The Staff Appeals, Appointment and Remuneration Committee is asked to
agree the Section 151 officer’s recommendation to create a second Director,
Finance post within the Resources Directorate; as recommended by CIPFA’s
independent report.
Reason for Proposal
3. The aims of this recommendation are to:


Strengthen the finance structure to reflect the Council’s ambitious capital
programmes Regeneration, Housing programme and Treasury Strategy.



Increase the focus on the core financial deliverables such as statement of
accounts, and strategic oversight of the budget, in particular driving forward
savings for medium term financial sustainability.

Relevance to the Council Plan
4. Strong financial governance underpins the Council’s Corporate Plan
objectives of:


Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods;



Safe, healthy and confident communities; and



An economy that works for everyone

Background
5. In May 2018 the council restructured management tiers creating a number of
new roles across the council and consolidating functions. The Delegated
Authority Report (DAR, 18 April 2018) report recommended the restructure of

Page 32
the top three tiers of the Council’s senior leadership structure informed by the
eight agreed organisation design principles and the need for a structure that
is fit for purpose to meet the financial, strategic and community challenges
the Council faces in the next three years.
6. In March 2019, as the new interim Executive Director, Resources was
appointed, there was an opportunity to re-set the vision for how Resources
would positively impact on driving forward the council plan, address
emerging challenges and ensure financial sustainability, in the medium term.
In establishing this vision, the staffing structure needed to be reviewed to
ensure that the Resources Directorate structure was in the best place to
deliver this.
7. During 2019/20, the Resources Directorate was restructured, to create the
roles of Director of Digital Services, and Director, Customer Experience. The
job description for the Director, Finance and Commercial (Deputy Section
151) was also modified marginally at that time. This structure has now
bedded in, with these roles in place for over a year. For the last year, a key
focus of the department has been responding to the Covid19 crisis.
8. Following the permanent appointment to the role of the Executive Director of
Resources from January 2021, the first task was to re-assess the priorities
for the department, organisational risk and the economic and financial
context of the Covid19 pandemic for the local authority. The Director of
Finance and Commercial has been covered on a fixed term basis since 24
December 2018 therefore, this also provides an opportunity to review the
structure in advance of permanent recruitment.
9. As set out in the Council’s constitution, the Chief Finance Officer has
responsibility for the administration of the financial affairs of the Council.
This proposal will increase the robustness of these arrangements. The
Council spend exceeds £1bn a year revenue and the planned capital
investment totals £2.2bn over the next ten years including significant
ambitious regeneration and housing programmes. Enfield is the third largest
borough in London, with high levels of poverty which impact on financial risks
which have heightened through Covid19; challenged through underfunding
resulting from damping. Much progress has been made over the last few
years, with the Ten Year Capital and Treasury Strategy in place and a more
resilient medium term financial plan. This proposed restructure aims to build
from this good base point.
10. Council’s are working in an increasingly complex financial environment with
the need for a broad skill set from more complex technical accounting to
requiring commercial acumen. Layered with increased financial risk due to
the broader economic and social environment post Covid19, strengthening
the financial leadership tier is a prudent step at this time.
Approach
11. As the first stage towards forming a view on the permanent structure that
was fit for the future, CIPFA (the professional body for public sector
accountants) was engaged to review the finance team staffing structure.
Engagement, either on a one-to-one basis or group workshops were
conducted with over 30 key stakeholders including, the Leader and Cabinet
Member for Finance, Senior Leadership Team, finance team heads of
service and middle managers. The underlying theme from the review was

Page 33
that, “Finance do the basics but lack the strategic thinking/capacity to take
the commercial/financial discussions to the next level.” This review resulted
in a clear consensus emerged from these conversations:


Significant progress had been made to date to improve the resilience of
the budgets



Finance team role in the council’s ambitious regeneration and housing
programmes needs to be strengthened - engagement in these areas and
influencing the strategic direction at the outset.



Delays in the Statement of Accounts is a significant priority to address.



Team members commented on the lack of capacity to “think” and plan and
invest in continuous improvement due to the workload and capacity
issues.



Procurement function is currently in the process of being restructured and
requires the improvement plan to be delivered.



Commercial function and strategy requires review.

Proposal
12. The CIPFA review suggested a number of recommendations for
consideration including to split out the current single role of the Director of
Finance and Commercial into two roles to balance the workload from one to
two Directors. “This will also provide an increased managerial focus on the
day-to-day running (and transformation of) core Finance whilst allowing
another Director post to focus on the commercial, capital, regeneration,
financing of the capital programme and procurement activities of the
function.”
13. The CIPFA document, the role of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) explains
that in order for the CFO to deliver their responsibilities, the CFO must “lead
and direct a finance function that is resourced to be fit for purpose”. The
Section 151 officer, having commissioned the CIPFA report and considered
the advice provided supports this view. Please note that the Director of
Finance and Commercial also undertakes the Section 151 function for Lee
Valley Park Authority; this is on a traded basis and is supported by
appropriate legal agreements.
14. In response to CIPFA’s independent review, it is proposed to increase the
Directors from three to four in Resources. In order to do this, the existing
post of Director of Finance and Commercial will be deleted and two posts
will be created:


Director, Finance (Capital, Regeneration and Commercial)



Director, Finance (Corporate), and Deputy Section 151 for Lee Valley
Park Authority

15. A summary of the high-level priorities for the two Directors roles are set out
below.
Director, Finance (Corporate Finance)


Ensuring all the activities are in place for timely issue of the Statement of
Accounts and continuously improved quality

Page 34


Leadership of the Council’s Medium-Term financial strategy - building on
existing base to increase focus on medium term planning – driving out
value from the budget, aligned to our priorities



Develop the business partnering focus of the team that adds value,
embedding commercial thinking into the team culture, reducing process



Delivering an updated financial ledger system within the next two years



Lobbying for fair funding for Enfield

Director, Finance – Capital and Commercial


Lead the Capital Investment Financing Strategy



Driving out value from the Council’s balance sheet and ensuring that the
capital investment programme is aligned to the strategic council priorities



Deliver the Procurement improvement plan to ensure best value and
increasing focus on “buy local”



Strategic finance partner and critical friend to Housing and Regeneration
strategies



The Council role for companies – strengthening due diligence for the
shareholder role



Improve capital expenditure forecasting

16. The Director appointments would be via a member panel; the broad
timetable for recruitment is set out below:
Staff
Appeals,
Appointment
and
Remuneration Committee
Engage
recruitment
company,
setting
up
microsite etc
Advert for role/s
Closing date
Long list
Short list
Interviews
Appointment (if subject to
12 weeks notice)

29 April 2021

1 May 2021 to 28 May
2021
w/c 31 May 2021
w/c 21 June 2021
w/c Monday 5 July
w/c Monday 19July
w/c Monday 26July
By 1st November 2021

Safeguarding Implications
17. There are no safeguarding implications arising from this report.
Public Health Implications
18. There are no public health implications arising from this report.
Equalities Impact of the Proposal
19. There are no equalities implications arising from this report.

Page 35
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations
20. There are no environmental and climate change implications arising from
this report.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken
21. It is the advice of the Section 151 officer that the finance director tier is
strengthened to reflect the priorities of the organisation. Should this not
proceed there is a risk that the speed of continuous improvement will not be
at pace required in the current financial context of Covid19 and would be
imprudent to not proceed.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will
be taken to manage these risks
22. The aim of this restructure is to strengthen the capacity to manage the
Council’s financial risks. However, the key risks and mitigations are set out
below.
23. Destabilisation – any restructure is destabilising and this may result in lack
of focus on key financial challenges (e.g. Statement of Accounts, Medium
Term Financial Plan, monitoring of budget etc). In order to reduce the impact
of this, there is flexibility to retain the existing arrangements and provide
appropriate hand over opportunities. Further, strong governance is in place
to ensure these priorities stay on track.
24. Recruitment risk - Risk that appropriately skilled financial professionals may
not be able to be recruited. This will be mitigated through the procurement of
appropriate recruitment agencies. There are other councils with similar split
of roles in place and therefore this role is comparable. The salary levels are
also comparable with other London Boroughs.
Financial Implications
25. To note that the cost of the additional Director post is anticipated to be up to
£84k in 2021/22, funded by £35k additional external income, £50k holding of
vacancies in the wider Resources Directorate. In 2022/23, the full cost of up
to £167k (including oncosts) will depend on the outcome of a broader
restructure consultation that is planned to take place. Initial indications are
that the wider restructure will be contained within existing finance budgets,
however, the Director post, will require additional budget requirements of
c£100k.
26. Legal Implications

27. The Council has a statutory duty to arrange for the proper administration of
its financial affairs and a fiduciary duty to the taxpayers with regards to the
use and accounting for public monies. This report contributes to the
discharge of these duties.
Workforce Implications
28. Consultation will take place with the existing fixed term postholder and the
trade unions in accordance with statutory regulations and Council guidelines.
Assimilation is not applicable in this instance as the new role is significantly
different to the current position. Recruitment to the two newly created
positions will be undertaken in line with our recruitment policy.

Page 36
29. Any displaced staff will be given access to redeployment as per Council
policy.
30. Any displaced staff who do not secure an alternative role in the new
structure, or via redeployment, will be eligible to receive redundancy
payments in accordance with statutory entitlements and Council policy. Prior
to any redundancy payments being issued the Redundancy Payment
Approval Form should be completed and signed off at the necessary level.
Property Implications
31. There are no property implications arising from the report.
Other Implications
32. None
Options Considered
33. One option could have been to add a HOS3 post instead of a Director post,
however, the independent CIPFA report supported the split of the functions
at Director level.
Conclusions
34. In summary it is the Section 151 recommendation that a second Director of

Finance post is created to strengthen the finance team; following CIPFA
independent review of the finance structure. This is building on the existing
resilient medium term financial plan and work undertaken on the Ten Year
Capital Programme and Ten Year Treasury Strategy to date.

Report Author:

Fay Hammond
Executive Director Resources
Fay.hammond@enfield.gov.uk
02083795580

Date of report

16 April 2021

